# McLouth USD #342



Negotiated Agreement 2023-2024

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Preamble	2
Definitions	3
Article I - Negotiations Agreement	4
Article II - Savings Clause	4
Article III - Instructor Assignment	4
Article IV – Contracts	5
Article V - Salary Schedule Interpretation	7
Article VI - Leave Policy	9
Article VII - Fringe Benefits	. 12
Article VIII - Jury Duty	13
Article IX - Workers Compensation	14
Article X - Grievance Procedure	14
Article XI - School Closing	14
Article XII - Duty Free Lunch	15
Article XIII – Reduction of Teaching Staff	15
Article XIV – Teacher Due Process	16
Individual Teacher's Employment Contract	17
Supplemental Contract	18
Article XV – 2023-2024 Salary Schedule	19
Article XVI – 2023-2024 Supplemental Salaries	20

#### **PREAMBLE**

The articles set forth herein shall refer to the contract of an employee who has received a teaching certificate from the State Department of Education that is currently valid and who is employed primarily to serve as a teacher, librarian or counselor for USD No. 342, and shall be and is a part of the individual contract for each teacher and the Board of Education and both parties shall be obligated thereby during the term of any contract made hereunder. The Board of Education and McLouth Education Association acknowledges that the articles herein set forth have been adopted following an interchange of ideas between representatives of the McLouth Education Association and the Board of Education of McLouth Unified School District No. 342, Jefferson County, State of Kansas, and are valid for the year July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. This contract is a one-year agreement and the only re-opening during the time period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 will be for salary items, unless other items are mutually agreed upon by both parties, and this agreement shall totally expire June 30, 2024.

Signature, BOE Representative

Signature, MEA Representative

#### **DEFINITIONS**

Student Week – The student school week will be determined by the school calendar as approved by the Board of Education.

Contractual Day – A contractual day will be one duty day of the teaching contract as stated in the negotiated agreement Article IV, Section 3.

{Contractual Day. The working day shall be 8 hours, including lunch, Monday through Thursday and 7 hours and 50 minutes, including lunch on Friday. A duty day preceding a holiday shall end 10 minutes after students are dismissed. No duty day shall end before students are dismissed. A full time work week will include a minimum of 205 minutes for preparation. Said preparation time will be scheduled during the student week. Administration may extend the workday for faculty meetings or emergencies. The working day shall normally run from 25 minutes prior to start of school and end 20 minutes after the student day ends, Monday through Thursday. On Friday, the working day shall run from 25 minutes prior to start of school and end 10 minutes after the student day ends.

Fall and spring parent-teacher conferences will be held from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. on the dates scheduled in the approved school calendar.

Work Day – Will be the same as a contractual day and will be used solely for grading and classroom preparation.

Duty Day – Will be the same as a contractual day and may include instruction, workday and/or professional development.

Duty Free Lunch – Teachers shall have a duty free lunch period as stated in the negotiated agreement Article XII, Section 1.

{Teachers will not be expected to perform lunchroom supervision or lunch line supervision unless they agree to accept such duty. Teachers will be allowed a twenty-five (25) minute lunch period during which the teacher may elect where on school premises to spend the period. The administration may require the teacher to perform hall or playground supervision in cases of reasonable emergencies, as determined by the administration. Such duty cannot be required for more than ten (10) minutes of the teacher's lunch period.}

Length of Day – As determined by the negotiated agreement stated in Article IV, Section 3. {The working day shall be 8 hours, including lunch, Monday through Thursday and 7 hours and 50 minutes, including lunch on Friday.}

#### ARTICLE I NEGOTIATIONS AGREEMENT

ORGANIZATION RECOGNITION. The McLouth Education Association is hereby recognized as the official agency representing part-time or full-time librarians, counselors and classroom teachers under contract to the Board of Education of Unified School District No. 342.

### ARTICLE II SAVINGS CLAUSE

SECTION 1 If the Board of Education and/or the McLouth Education Association desire to negotiate on new items or to amend the existing agreement, written notices must be exchanged on or before the end of the contractual day on March 31<sup>st</sup>. If school is not in session on March 31<sup>st</sup>, letters must be exchanged prior to that day. Such notices shall contain in reasonable and understandable detail the purpose of the new or amended items.

SECTION 2 During the term of this agreement, the provisions contained herein shall remain in full force and effect unless changed by agreement of the parties. Either party may request that the contract be reopened to discuss a specific issue, but both parties must agree before that action will occur.

SECTION 3 Any paragraph of this agreement, which is contrary to law, shall be null and void, and the parties will meet in an attempt to revise the language. The remainder of the agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

### ARTICLE III INSTRUCTOR ASSIGNMENT

SECTION 1 The administration, through the superintendent of schools, reserves the sole right to assign teachers by grade, subject and building as the school program demands.

If a teacher is asked to make an involuntary change of assignment on July 1 or after, they may be entitled to compensation for planning, preparation and moving, with documented time spent under the following guidelines:

If a teacher is asked to teach one to three new courses, of which they have not taught in the previous five years, they will be eligible to turn in up to a maximum of five days at eight hours per day. For this documented time they will be compensated \$100 per day.

If a teacher is asked to teach four or more new courses, of which they have not taught in the previous five years, they will be eligible to turn in up to a maximum of five days at eight hours per day. For this documented time they will be compensated \$200 per day.

SECTION 2 The Board of Education will pay for the following activities performed beyond the contractual day as follows:

Grade School Music Program Supervision	\$20
Orientations	\$20
Open House	\$20
Homecoming Activities	\$20
Dance Supervision	\$30
IEP Meetings Per Hour	\$13
Classroom Sub (minimum of 40 min)	\$22
Saturday School Supervision Per Hour	\$20
Tutoring low performance students beyond the contractual day	\$20
Textbook Adoption Committee – elementary	\$300
Textbook Adoption Committee – secondary	\$300
Summer School Per Hour	\$25

Requests for payment for the above activities must be submitted within 30 days of the activity. The Textbook Adoption Committee amount will be divided among the members of the committee as determined by the committee chair.

Payment for homecoming activities and dance supervision will be made only to individuals not already receiving a supplemental contract that covers those activities (ex. Class/Club Sponsor).

#### ARTICLE IV CONTRACTS

SECTION 1 After negotiations have been completed and ratified by the Board of Education and the McLouth Education Association, a contract for each staff member recommended will be prepared in duplicate. Both copies will be retained in the office of the administration where they may be reviewed by the staff member. Copies of this agreement shall be posted to the district's webpage.

SECTION 2 The 2023-2024 contract shall be for no more than 188 days of which at least 10 days will be teacher workdays/inservice days. One of the scheduled workdays will be reserved solely for grading and classroom preparation between the semesters; 1 workday at the end of first quarter; 1/2 workday at the end of third quarter; 1 workday before students start school; and 1 workday after students last day. A maximum of 2 inservice/collaboration days may be scheduled after the school year ends. These days may be scheduled within 10 days of the last teacher workday. One work day will be reserved for mandatory participation at high school graduation for any teacher that teaches at least one hour of high school. One work day will be reserved for mandatory participation at middle school promotion for teachers teaching at the middle school only. Elementary teachers may choose between high school graduation and middle school promotion. (Superintendent of

Schools may excuse graduation participation for a valid reason. Request to be excused shall be presented to superintendent at least two weeks prior to graduation. Superintendent shall respond to request within three business days). Absence from a workday due to illness or personal leave shall be treated as such. Absence for any other reason shall result in loss of one day's pay for each day lost.

The following holidays shall be excused and not counted toward the 188 days:

Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
The day after Thanksgiving
A minimum of five days for winter break, to include Christmas and New Year's Day
Memorial Day

The Board reserves the right to include additional holidays in the school calendar that will not be part of the 188 contract days.

SECTION 3 Contractual Day. The working day shall be 8 hours, including lunch, Monday through Thursday and 7 hours and 50 minutes, including lunch on Friday. A duty day preceding a holiday shall end 10 minutes after students are dismissed. No duty day shall end before students are dismissed. A full time work week will include a minimum of 205 minutes for preparation. Said preparation time will be scheduled during the student week. Administration may extend the workday for faculty meetings or emergencies. Staff need to be given a 24 hour notice of a non-emergency faculty meeting. The notice will give the start and end time. The meeting will not begin earlier than 7:30 am or go past 4:30 pm. Non-emergency faculty meetings are not to be held more than once a month. The working day shall normally run from 25 minutes prior to start of school and end 20 minutes after the student day ends, Monday through Thursday. On Friday, the working day shall run from 25 minutes prior to start of school and end 10 minutes after the student day ends. Staff will make themselves available to students before and after school during the contractual day when scheduled in advance.

Fall and spring parent-teacher conferences will be held from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. on the dates scheduled in the approved school calendar.

SECTION 4 Physical Examination. Upon initial employment or at any time there is reasonable cause to believe that any teacher is suffering from an illness detrimental to the health of the pupils, the school board may require a health certificate. The cost of the initial certificate will be borne by the employee with any additional certification requested by the Board to be paid for by the Board.

SECTION 5 Liquidated Damages/Early Release. A teacher requesting release from contract, for the ensuing school year, shall be assessed liquidated damages according to the following schedule:

June 1st - June 30th \$1,000 July 1st - July 31st \$2,000 August 1st - Balance of the Year - 10% of combined base/supplemental salary

Request for release from contract shall be made in writing and accompanied by a certified check for the amount of the liquidated damages. Teacher release is contingent upon the district being paid for the liquidated damages and contingent upon finding a suitable replacement. In the cases of extraordinary circumstances, the teacher may make application to the Board of Education for reduction of liquidated damages. Teachers requesting release from contract by January 1<sup>st</sup> of the current school year for the purpose of resigning effective at the end of that school year, will receive a \$1000 lump sum payment.

SECTION 6 Direct deposit of paychecks will be allowed to any bank. The teacher will be allowed the opportunity to begin or discontinue the direct deposit, with a 30 day notice in writing between the dates of September 1 and May 20.

SECTION 7 Early Retirement Incentive. A teacher requesting release from contract by August 1<sup>st</sup> of the current school year, for the purpose of retirement from the district and from KPERS for the ensuing school year, shall receive a \$2,000 early retirement payment, which will be added to the last year's contract. Request for release from contract shall be made in writing and accompanied by the paperwork for KPERS retirement. Teachers who retire may elect to stay on the district health insurance for up to two years or until they turn 65, whichever comes first. The school district will pay 95% of the active single employee premium rate at the time of retirement. If the premium increases, the retiree would be responsible for the difference. The retiree contribution of the monthly premium will be paid to the clerk of the board by the first of each month. The retiree would also be responsible for any premiums for dependents. In order for a teacher to be eligible for this benefit, they must have taught in the district for 20 years.

### ARTICLE V SALARY SCHEDULE INTERPRETATION

SECTION 1 The salary of all classroom teachers is based upon a schedule (ARTICLE XV): Teachers employed for less than a full day will receive a prorated amount based on the percentage of the school day taught.

SECTION 2 Approved advancement on the salary schedule allows the individual to advance no more than one experience step annually in the experience column and a step in the education lane for each 10 hours of education accumulated in the manner prescribed in

Section 3, prior to a Masters Degree. A step for Masters plus 10, 20, and 30 hours shall be approved in the manner prescribed in Section 3.

SECTION 3 Hours earned by a teacher subsequent to being awarded a Bachelors Degree shall automatically be approved for advancement on the salary schedule, provided said hours are in the teacher's major or minor field. All other hours must be approved by the superintendent before they may be used for advancement on the salary schedule.

Inservice points may be used for movement on the salary schedule under the following guidelines:

- 1. Teachers with approved individual development plans shall be credited toward movement on the salary schedule at the rate of twenty (20) inservice points equaling one (1) hour of college credit as of September 1 of the contract year. Inservice hours for movement on the salary schedule will be limited to the number of hours of inservice actually used for purposes of recertification. Teachers will be responsible for all workshop costs, with the exception of substitute teachers, which will be paid by the school district. If the workshop is paid for by the district, teachers cannot use this workshop to move across the salary schedule.
- 2. Application level inservice points may be used for movement on the salary schedule, with administrative approval, and are limited to 100 points. Movement on each educational lane is limited to 100 application points along with five (5) college credit hours.
- 3. Points which meet the criteria stated above will be changed to college hours at the ration of twenty (20) inservice points: one (1) college hour.

SECTION 4 To be considered for advancement on the educational lane the teacher must file a written request by the first day of school and no change will be made after that date for that school year. A \$2,500 incentive will be awarded on a one time basis for returning teachers who complete a Masters' Degree to be paid no later than October 15 of the year the written request is received for advancement on the educational lane, the written request must be received by the end of the school year prior to the October payment; or, The Board of Education will pay \$833.33 as a reimbursement for graduate credit toward a Master's Degree program for a maximum of \$2,500. Hours must be approved by the superintendent of schools. The reimbursement will be paid after certification showing successful completion of the hours and proof of paid tuition. Reimbursement will be paid once for hours submitted and approved and will not become part of the salary schedule. In addition, the teacher does not complete the degree within the prescribed program timeline or does not serve the district for one year, the money paid by the district is to be refunded to the district.

SECTION 5 Salaries earned under the supplemental schedule will be added to the normal annual salary and then divided into equal monthly payments.

Salary deductions resulting from inexcusable loss of time shall be on the basis of the cost of a full day's pay (1/188).

SECTION 6 Supplemental Schedule. The supplemental schedule provides levels of payment for all duties not considered a part of the normal teaching load. If an assistant coaching position is unfilled, the head coach shall receive only his/her normal compensation.

SECTION 7 Placement on Schedule. The board shall have the right to make a one-time placement of teachers on the salary schedule. Advanced degrees and years of service credit would be considered to help make that placement.

#### ARTICLE VI LEAVE POLICY

SECTION 1 All teachers will be granted twelve (12) days leave beginning the opening day of the school term. Teachers will be permitted to take leave in full day and half day increments. All days of leave are to be non-cumulative unless the employee chooses the Cumulative Leave Option.

For each unused leave day, the Board of Education will pay an amount equal to substitute daily rate (at the beginning of the school year) to the teacher at the end of the teacher contract year for a maximum of twelve (12) days.

At the end of each school year, an employee may designate up to a maximum of five (5) of the remaining leave days, per year, to the employee's own personal sick leave pool. Days placed in the pool must be full days, not partial days. Each pool will have a 22 day cap. Days not placed in the pool will be subject to the current buyback procedure.

Once an employee has designated days to be placed in the sick leave pool, those days:

•will only be available for the employee's own personal medical needs and must be used in whole day increments;

•will not be available for use until the employee has used up the current year's twelve (12) day leave allotment;

•will not be subject to the buyback option unless the person retires or leaves the district after a minimum of 10 years service, and then will be reimbursed at the rate of \$40 per day. The employee must designate, in writing to the district office by May 1 of the employee's intention of contributing to the pool. If the employee does not designate his/her choice in writing, the leave will be subject to the buyback option.

Four bereavement days per incident will be available for a spouse, son, daughter, mother, father, mother-in-law or father-in-law. Three bereavement days per incident will be available for sister, brother, grandparent, or member of the family living in the same household. If the travel time to the funeral is greater than 300 miles, then one additional day will be allowed for travel time per incident. These days are to be used for bereavement only. It is in addition to the 12 days leave, but will not be reimbursed at the buyback rate for unused personal leave.

In case of illness the employee shall notify the building principal or designee no later than 6:45 a.m. on the day the employee is ill.

After three consecutive days of leave due to serious illness or accident, a doctor's permit to return to work may be requested by the administration.

An employee may use the leave at his/her discretion. However, no more than two consecutive work days of personal leave may be used unless due to serious illness or accident. Leave shall not be used to extend a holiday or vacation, or during the first two weeks/last two weeks of school. Excessive requests for personal leave on district-wide inservice days may be denied. The superintendent may make exceptions to the above requirements. If leave is to be used for personal leave other than illness, the employee shall notify the building principal, in writing, at least one week in advance of the dates of the personal leave. The administration may make an exception to the one week requirement in the case of an emergency. In the event of illness, accident, or death of an immediate family member such approval shall not be denied. If an employee takes leave or personal leave without notifying the building principal or the superintendent, said employee will have pay deducted in an amount of 1/188 of his/her annual salary for each day used.

SECTION 2 Professional Improvement. Each teacher may be granted up to three (3) days of leave for professional improvement each year. Each day of absence for professional improvement will be mutually agreed upon by the teacher and the building principal and arranged at least one week before the absence. The administration reserves the right to grant more than three days of professional improvement leave to a teacher or to waive the requirement of being notified one week in advance, if it deems it is in the best interest of the district to do so.

When a teacher is to be absent from regular teaching duties due to attendance at a workshop, meeting or other professional event, the administration shall determine beforehand whether that absence will be considered a day of Professional Improvement Leave, subject to the provisions of this section, or a day of school business which is not to be considered an absence of any kind.

Professional development costs will be paid by the district as funds are available.

SECTION 3 A pool of six (6) days per year shall be available for teachers to attend Association events without loss of pay. If these six days are not used for Association events they may be added to the professional improvement days for the current year.

SECTION 4 Extended Unpaid Leave. Teachers are entitled to extended leave without pay as governed by FMLA regulations and policies.

SECTION 5 Education leave without pay is subject to approval by the Board of Education. Request by the teacher shall be made before March 1 and the Board shall notify the teacher, in writing, of its decision by April 15. The teacher shall be required to return to the district for the amount of time granted for leave.

SECTION 6 Catastrophic Leave Donations: Each certified employee may donate one leave day per school year (August 1<sup>st</sup> to July 31<sup>st</sup>) to any other certified employee they choose to give their leave days to "in times of need". They may do this any time during the school year.

The request will be initiated by the employee to their building principal. The request will be sent to the Superintendent's Office. Once the Superintendent has been given the request, the leave pool committee will serve to approve/disapprove the request. The committee will be made of the Superintendent and an appointed administrator plus two teachers. The teachers will be appointed by the Association. The committee will also be called to approve/disapprove allowing donated leave. The committee may request written verification for the donation.

The decisions of the committee regarding the leave requests are final and shall not be the basis for a grievance.

"Times of Need" is defined as a prolonged illness or extraordinary circumstances. Individual receiving the donation must have exhausted all of their available leave. Eligibility is limited to the certified staff or a member of their immediate family. A signed letter from the doctor providing care may be requested. The intent of the policy is that the family member must be critically ill and require the presence of the employee to care for them. Short term care for illness or disability is not covered within the scope of this policy. Any single employee may only receive a maximum of fifteen donated days.

#### ARTICLE VII FRINGE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 The Board of Education will pay up to \$700 per month for an employee who elects a single medical plan or the Board will pay up to \$1,105 per month for an employee who elects a medical plan with dependents. If the cost of the medical plan is less than the amount provided, the difference can be used towards dental for the employee and/or dependents.

No benefit is available to an employee waiving medical coverage.

For employees who were on a family medical plan as of December 31, 2022 and continue to elect a family medical plan, the Board will pay up to an additional \$200 per month. This additional amount can be used towards medical and/or dental for the employee and/or dependents.

Contingent upon the following:

- 1. The district must meet the requirements of a health insurance group plan.
- 2. If there is no group plan available, one-half of the insurance amount budgeted would be divided equally among all teachers.

The Board shall have the right to hold the policies, to select the vendor and the benefits, to develop and administer the group and program, and shall have the option of including non-teachers in the group.

In addition to the above described benefits and rights, the Board shall furnish employees of Unified School District No. 342, Jefferson County, Kansas, (hereinafter "District") with a choice of receiving certain tax-free benefits provided by District in lieu of taxable compensation. It is the intention of the District that the plan qualify as a salary reduction "Cafeteria Plan" within the meaning of Section 125 (d) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, and that the benefits which an employee elects to receive under the plan be eligible for exclusion from such employee's income under Section 125 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended.

Provided further the sum of money to be used by the professional employee toward the purchase of nontaxable benefits shall not exceed the limit set by the Board of Education. That amount shall be determined by the professional employees once each year on or before October 1.

These benefits, which are hereinafter referred to as the "plan" may include (1) health insurance (hospitalization); (2) short-term disability insurance (salary protection); (3) cancer insurance; (4) group term life insurance (\$50,000 maximum); and (5) dental insurance.

The board reserves the right to determine, after consultation with employees, the vendor and benefits of each insurance benefit included in the plan.

A teacher deciding to reduce his/her salary must provide written notice to the superintendent on forms provided by the superintendent on or before September 1 of each year. The notification shall include the dollar amount of salary reduction and the benefits desired. The benefits or the amount of salary reduction may not be changed during the plan year except changes in the amount of salary reduction will be allowed upon a change of family status of the employee as provided in the plan agreement or in the event of a termination of one of the plan benefits.

SECTION 2 Teacher Retirement Fund. The deduction for KPERS fund is automatically taken care of by the payroll personnel. Each individual teacher is an automatic member of Kansas Public Employees Retirement System.

SECTION 3 Payroll deductions are provided for teacher association dues. Authorization to deduct teacher association dues must be completed by September 1 of each school year. The Board of Education will deduct equal payments of such dues from the regular check of the employee for each pay period beginning in September.

SECTION 4 Payroll deductions for annuities will be made to companies approved by the Board of Education.

SECTION 5 The district will reimburse a teacher for the renewal fee for a Kansas teaching license providing the new license has been submitted to the district office prior to the expiration date of the current license. Initial licenses and any background checks will be the financial responsibility of the teacher. The addition of endorsements will remain the responsibility of the teacher unless the district has requested the teacher obtains the endorsement.

### ARTICLE VIII JURY DUTY

SECTION 1 When teachers are called for jury duty, the teacher will be allowed to serve and if the teacher does serve on the jury, no loss of pay will be suffered if compensation, excluding mileage paid by the court, that is received by the teacher for serving on the jury is turned over to the district. The teacher must furnish written information concerning details of duration and involvement to the extent that he/she can.

### ARTICLE IX WORKERS COMPENSATION

SECTION 1 All teachers shall be covered by workers compensation insurance that is purchased by McLouth Unified School District No. 342.

### ARTICLE X GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

SECTION 1 A grievance is a complaint by a teacher involving an alleged misinterpretation of the negotiated agreement.

SECTION 2 A grievance shall be filed, in writing, within ten (10) business days of the alleged misinterpretation. The grievance is to be filed with the building principal. The building principal shall reply, in writing, to the filed grievance within five (5) business days. The aggrieved teacher shall have five (5) business days to appeal the decision, in writing, to the superintendent.

SECTION 3 The superintendent shall reply to the filed grievance within five (5) business days. The aggrieved teacher shall have five (5) business days to appeal the decision, in writing, to the Board of Education.

SECTION 4 The Board of Education shall reply, in writing, to the filed grievance within five (5) business days following the next regular board meeting. The aggrieved teacher shall have the right to present his/her case to the Board in executive session with representation. Representation must be identified at the time of the request to present his/her case to the Board of Education.

SECTION 5 For purposes of this section, "business days" shall mean any day in which the USD 342 central office shall be open for the purpose of conducting school business.

### ARTICLE XI SCHOOL CLOSING

SECTION 1 Days when school is closed prior to 7:00 a.m. by order of the superintendent of schools for causes beyond the control of the Board of Education: e.g., bad weather, civil disorder, or other "Acts of God" shall not be counted as part of the 188 days contracted.

When snow make up days result in the extension of the teachers contract year, alternative schedules will be developed on an individual basis when the contract year conflicts with a previously scheduled summer school.

### ARTICLE XII DUTY FREE LUNCH

SECTION 1 Teachers will not be expected to perform lunchroom supervision or lunch line supervision unless they agree to accept such duty.

Teachers will be allowed a twenty-five (25) minute lunch period during which the teacher may elect where on school premises to spend the period. The administration may require the teacher to perform hall or playground supervision in cases of reasonable emergencies, as determined by the administration. Such duty cannot be required for more than ten (10) minutes of the teacher's lunch period.

### ARTICLE XIII REDUCTION OF TEACHING STAFF

SECTION 1 The following steps will be utilized by the district's administrative staff to reduce the teaching staff: To determine the number of teaching positions to be reduced, the administrative staff will determine the educational program for the district in accordance with the educational goals established by the board. Any affected professional employees will be notified of the impending reduction of staff when discussions are nearing a definite conclusion on potential reductions; and then, only if possible reductions are necessary. The number of teachers needed to implement the district's educational program will then be determined by the administrative staff based on those educational goals in determining which teachers will be non-renewed due to reduction in force. The educational goals and needs of the district, individual certifications, qualifications, training, skills and evaluations shall be considered.

In the event all of the teachers have similar certifications, qualifications and skills in a teaching area, the teacher(s) who best meets the needs of the district will be retained. Any certified employee who has not been reemployed as a result of reduction of the teaching staff shall be considered for reemployment if a vacancy exists for which the teacher would qualify. Certified employees who may be eligible for reemployment are required to notify the district of their current address. The superintendent will recommend to the board reinstatement of any teacher qualified and able to serve the best interests of the district. The board shall not be required to consider reinstatement of any teacher after a period of one year from the date of nonrenewal.

### ARTICLE XIV TEACHER DUE PROCESS

Whenever a teacher who has taught five or more continuous years in the district is given written notice of a board's intention to not renew the teacher's contract, the teacher may request a meeting with the board by filing a written request with the clerk of the board within 10 days from the date of receipt of the written statement of nonrenewal of a contract.

The board shall hold such meeting within 10 days after the filing of the teacher's request. The meeting provided for under this section shall be held in executive session and, at such meeting, the board shall specify the reason or reasons for the board's intention to not renew the teacher's contract. The teacher shall be afforded an opportunity to respond to the board. Neither party shall have the right to have counsel present. Within 10 days after the meeting, the board shall reconsider its reason or reasons for nonrenewal and shall make a final decision as to the matter.

## INDIVIDUAL TEACHER'S EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT USD NO. 342

This contract, made ar of Unified School Dist, hereinafter called the	nd entered into, this rict No. 342, Jefferson C "Teacher".	day of County, Kansas, here	, 20 einafter called	, by and between the the "Board"	e Board of Educationand
342, Jefferson County, at least 188 duty days at the salary of \$	te that Teacher shall be a Kansas, for the school of teaching and other as for said year, particularly for said year, particularly,	year 2020, as d signments as design ayable in twenty-for	efined and sch nated by the B ur (24) equal i	neduled by the Board loard, including, but installments, on or b	l, which shall include not limited to,
of schools, and the Topolicies, orders rules a	e performed by the Tea eacher shall be subject and regulations are not a er school, or to any edu	to the policies, ord part of this contract	ers, rules and ct. The Board	regulations of the reserves the right t	Board; however said o transfer or reassign
hereunder with respect	contingent upon the Te t to the position for whit ish the Board and to man of employment hereund	ich the Teacher is e aintain an applicabl	mployed as pre e Kansas Instr	rovided by law; in t ructor's Certificate t	he event the Teacher o be in full force and
3. As a condition to signed by a licensed p	entering or continuing hysician, the expense th	g employment, the ereof to be borne by	Teacher is recy the teacher, a	quired to submit a cas provided by K.S	ertification of health A. 72-5213.
the school year, the sa with the compensation	mployment of the Teac lary as hereinbefore spe heretofore paid, shall be prior to the effective dated by the Board.	cified shall be adjus bear the same relation	sted and paid on ship to the to	on the basis of an an otal salary above sp	nount which, together ecified as the number
amount shall be made	cher is absent from dut from the salary for each ave or the result of oth rd.	h day of absence. D	eductions sha	ll not be made in th	e event such absence
6. This Contract is samendments thereof o	subject to the terms and r supplements thereto re	provisions of the K espectively, and to a	ansas Cash Ba	asis Law and the Ka cable United States a	nsas Budget Act, and and Kansas Laws.
Policies. I recognize district's function and McLouth USD 342 teto me and agree to follow for the duration of my	do acknowledge unders and understand that M aligned with its goals a chnology systems I und low all policies and prody association with McLey McLouth USD 342 to	cLouth USD 342 thand mission. As parestand that the Intercedures that are set touth USD 342. I un	echnology system of the McI ernet Safety, E forth. I further aderstand that	stems are to be use Louth USD 342 org Smail, and Acceptab r agree to abide by t McLouth USD 342	d for conducting the anization and user of le Use Policies apply he standards set forth technology systems
WITNESS OUR HAN	IDS on the day and year	first above written			
	DISTRICT NO. 342 Y, STATE OF KANSA	AS			
Ву	President, Board of Ed	ducation		<del></del>	
	Teacher				
ATTEST:	Clerk				

# SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACT USD NO. 342

between the Boa	ade and entered int ard of Education of ter called the "Boar oyee".	f Unitied So	shool District I	No. 342,	Jefferson	County,
School District N	to agree that Employs. 342, Jefferson (by the Board, shall in	County, Kan	sas, whose sup	the Boar	rd of said l duties as	Unified defined
Supplemental As	ssignment	Salary				
said salary payab	ole at or before the	end of each	athletic season.			
Kansas Budget A	subject to the terms Act, and amendmer ble United States ar	nts thereof o	r supplements			
WITNESS OUR	HANDS on the da	y and year f	irst above writt	en.		
BY:						
	President, Board	of Education				
	Teacher					
ATTEST:						
	Clerk	·	,,, <u> </u>			

USD 342 Article XV Salary Schedule 2023-2024

STEP	BS	BS+10	BS+20	BS+30	BS+40	MS	MS+10	MS+20	MS+30
1	43751	44292	44833	45374	45915	46996	47537	48078	48619
2	44351	44892	45433	45974	46515	47596	48137	48678	49219
3	44951	45492	46033	46574	47115	48196	48737	49278	49819
4	45551	46092	46633	47174	47715	48796	49337	49878	50419
5	46151	46692	47233	47774	48315	49396	49937	50478	51019
6	46751	47292	47833	48374	48915	49996	50537	51078	51619
7	47351	47892	48433	48974	49515	50596	51137	51678	52219
8		48492	49033	49574	50115	51196	51737	52278	52819
9		49092	49633	50174	50715	51796	52337	52878	53419
10		49692	50233	50774	51315	52396	52937	53478	54019
11		50292	50833	51374	51915	52996	53537	54078	54619
12		50892	51433	51974	52515	53596	54137	54678	55219
13			52033	52574	53115	54196	54737	55278	55819
14			52633	53174	53715	54796	55337	55878	56419
15			53233	53774	54315	55396	55937	56478	57019
16				54374	54915	55996	56537	57078	57619
17				54974	55515	56596	57137	57678	58219
18				55574	56115	57196	57737	58278	58819
19				56174	56715	57796	58337	58878	59419
20				56774	57315	58396	58937	59478	60019
21				57374	57915	58996	59537	60078	60619
22				57974	58515	59596	60137	60678	61219
23				58574	59115	60196	60737	61278	61819
24					59715	60796	61337	61878	62419
25								62478	63019

### USD 342 Article XVI Supplemental Salaries 2023-2024

Supplemental Name:	2023-2024 % of Base	Base:	43751
Supplemental Name:	70 OI Dase	Dasc.	73731
HS SPORTS			
Activities Director	0.16	7000	
Conditioning Spring or Fall	0.02	875	
Conditioning Summer	0.05	2188	
Head Football	0.11	4813	
Head Volleyball	0.11	4813	
Head Track	0.11	4813	-
Head Cross Country	0.11	4813	
Head Baseball	0.11	4813	
Head Softball	0.11	4813	
Head Girls Basketball	0.12	5250	
Head Boys Basketball	0.12	5250	
Assistant Football	0.08	3500	
Assistant Volleyball	0.08	3500	
Assistant Cross Country	0.08	3500	
Assistant Track	0.08	3500	
Assistant Baseball	0.08	3500	-
Assistant Softball	0.08	3500	
Assistant Girls Basketball	0.09	3938	
Assistant Boys Basketball	0.09	3938	
Powerlifting Coach	0.04	1750	
MS SPORTS			
Head Football	0.06	2625	
Head Volleyball	0.06	2625	
Head Track	0.06	2625	
Head Girls Basketball	0.06	2625	
Head Boys Basketball	0.06	2625	
Assistant Football	0.04	1750	
Assistant Volleyball	0.04	1750	
Assistant Girls Basketball	0.04	1750	
Assistant Boys Basketball	0.04	1750	
Assistant Track	0.04	1750	

OTHER ACTIVITIES			
High School Cheerleading	0.11	4813	
Assistant High School Cheerleading	0.08	3500	
Middle School Cheerleading	0.08	3500	
Vocal	0.06	2625	
Band	0.08	3500	
High School Student Council	0.04	1750	
Middle School Student Council	0.02	875	
Drama	0.06	2625	
Forensics	0.04	1750	
High School Knowledge Bowl	0.04	1750	
Middle School Knowledge Bowl	0.025	1094	
Principal Advisory Council Member			
School Improvement Team Member	0.025	1094	
Curriculum Improvement Team Member	0.025	1094	
Chairman, Curriculum Council	0.04	1750	
FCCLA Sponsor	0.04	1750	
FBLA Sponsor	0.04	1750	
Elem. Music Director	0.02	875	
National Honor Society	0.01	438	
Junior Class Sponsor	0.025	1094	
Senior Class Sponsor	0.02	875	
Sophomore Class Sponsor	0.01	438	
Freshman Class Sponsor	0.01	438	
Eighth Grade Class Sponsor	0.01	438	
Activity Supervisor	0.04	1750	
FFA Sponsor	0.06	2625	
Head Science Olympiad	0.04	1750	
Asst. Science Olympiad	0.02	875	
Spanish Club Sponsor	0.01	438	